
GUAM COUNCIL ON THE ARTS AND HUMANITIES AGENCY 
Regular Monthly Board Meeting 

 Tuesday 23, 2024, at 3:00 pm  
 
 

Meeting AGENDA 
 

 
 

I. Call to Order 
 

II. Roll Call 
 

III. Approval of Minutes 
• December 2023 

 
IV. Executive Directors Report 

 
V. FESTPAC 2024  

 
VI. Board Action 

 
VII. Old Business 

• FY-2025 Budget Preparation/Review 
• Masters, Traditional Arts Application Review  

(Open Nominations: April 2024) 
 

VIII. New Business 
• TCDs / Investments (Percent for the Arts funds) 
• Executive Director Nomination:  Angie Taitague  

IX.  
Announcements 
• Art Openings, Shows, & Events 

 
X. Adjournment (Next Regular Mtg:  February 13, 2024) 

 
 

 



GUAM COUNCIL ON THE ARTS AND HUMANITIES AGENCY 
Regular Monthly Board Meeting 

 Tuesday 23, 2024, at 3:00 pm  
 
 

Meeting AGENDA 
 

 
 

I. Call to Order 
 

II. Roll Call 
 

III. Approval of Minutes 
• December 2023 

 
IV. Executive Directors Report 

 
V. FESTPAC 2024  

 
VI. Board Action 

 
VII. Old Business 

• FY-2025 Budget Preparation/Review 
• Masters, Traditional Arts Application Review  

(Open Nominations: April 2024) 
 

VIII. New Business 
• TCDs / Investments (Percent for the Arts funds) 
• Executive Director Nomination:  Angie Taitague  

IX.  
Announcements 
• Art Openings, Shows, & Events 

 
X. Adjournment (Next Regular Mtg:  February 13, 2024) 

 
 

 



1 
 

 

                 GUAM COUNCIL ON THE ARTS AND HUMANITIES AGENCY 
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

December 27, 2023 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER  
The Guam Council on the Arts and Humanities Agency’s regular board meeting was called to order at 3:00 pm by 
Chairwoman of the Board, Monica Guzman. 
 

II. ATTENDANCE: 
 

• Board Members:  Monica Guzman (Chair), Max Ronquillo (Vice), Donna Kloppenburg, Mayor Jessy Gogue, Frank 
Rabon, Al Labang, Rolly Zepeda 

• Staff:  Acting Executive Director (ED) Angie R. Taitague, Jackie Balbas Ordilia (Lilly) Cruz, Mike Mafnas 
• Absent: Board Members:  Simone Bollinger 

 
III. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

-September Minutes 
 Chairwoman Monica Guzman discusses that in the minutes we need to clarify item number 7 in the grants 
review section on the account and funding spoken about for the RFP 
Donna Kloppenburg amends the motion to approve the minutes based on corrections. Mayor Jessy Gogue seconds. 
Motion Carries 
-October Minutes 
 Donna Kloppenburg moves to approve the October minutes. Al Labang seconds. Motion Carries 
-November Minutes 
 Chairwoman Monica Guzman discusses we need to clarify the motion in the approval of minutes. Correct 
the typo under the FESTPAC section. Correct dates to May 3rd. Sponsors should be changed to potential sponsors. 
And Mayor Jessy Gogue’s name needs to be corrected. Donna Kloppenburg moved to approve the minutes based 
on the corrections. Al Labang seconds. Motion Carries. 

Swearing in of Board members and Officers 
Chairwoman Monica Guzman calls on Senator Roy Quinata to swear in Board of Directors members and Officers. 
Senator Quinata swears in Rolly Zepeda as an official Guam CAHA Board Member 
Senator Quinata swears in Guam CAHA officers; Monica Guzman as Board Chair, Max Ronquillo as Vice Chair, 
Donna Kloppenburg as Secretary and Mayor Jessy Gogue as Treasurer. 

 

IV. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT:  
 

• Revolving Fund Report / Audit 
 
a. Guam Revolving Checking Account Balance as of December 26, 2023, is fifty-one thousand eight hundred 
and eighty-two dollars and fifty-one cents. $51,882.51 

b. Festpac Checking Account Balance as of December 26,2023 is Two thousand Two hundred twenty-six              
dollars and sixty cents. $2,226.60. 

 
c. Percent for the Arts Checking Account Balance as of December 26, 2023, is five hundred ninety-one  

thousand two hundred fifty-two dollars and seventy-five cents. $591,252.75. 

d. Percent for the Arts Saving Account Balance as of December 26, 2023 is One million one hundred and   
twenty-six three thousand three hundred seventeen dollars and fifty-nine cents. $1,126,317.59 



2 
 

• Audit Request:  Status Quo. 
 
• Percent For the Arts Rules & Regulation:  Started reviewing and compiling all changes pertaining to the 
Percent law 

 
 
• Traditional Master’s Program: Chair woman Monica Guzman asked for Frank Rabon’s comments on this 

topic as he was the board member that led the efforts for the Traditional Master’s Program. Frank Rabon cautions 
the staff in their effort to move forward. He also asked what and who Guam CAHA will be recognizing as “Masters”. 
Are we recognizing based on any art for or are we recognizing based on traditional practices that are unique to 
the Chamorro people of the Marianas. Chairwoman Monica Guzman states that it is the “Traditional Masters 
Program. Frank Rabon responds, if we stick to that we are focusing on traditional practices that make the 
Chamorro people unique. Open discussion by the board on the Law, Requirements and previous discussion on 
the program. Chairwoman Monica Guzman suggests that if Guam CAHA wants to move forward, In the January 
meeting the board will review and approve nomination packets while Frank Rabon awaits the amendments from 
Senator Chris Barnette’s office. 
 
• Art Bank: Mike Mafnas will begin to make rounds to government agencies mid-January to inventory for Art 

Bank 
 

• CAHA Website: Status Quo 
 
• Travel Report:  See Attached 

 
V. FESTPAC 

Chair woman Monica Guzman gives an action item report 
- Delegation Orientation moved to Feb 27th 
- Delegation forms deadline extended to December 28th 
- Waiting on budget from the Literary Arts program 
- Need an RFP for design and production of uniforms 
- Meeting set for January 9th with Roman dela Cruz to discuss his proposal for t-shirts that he has agreed to fund 
- PBS wants to start scheduling interviews 
- Currently working with Donna Kloppenburg on the Festpac presentation in April or May 
- United still a sponsor 
- Finalizing Matson’s in-kind sponsorship 
- Need an RFP for design of the village hut for the convention center 
- Need a board action to transfer funds from percent for the arts account to the Festpac account 

 
VI. Board Action 

1. Resolution 2023-003 (Transfer of FESTPAC Funds) 
Vice Chair Max Ronquillo moved to adopt Resolution 21023-003 relative to transferring $350,000 from the CAHA 
percent for the arts checking account to the CAHA FESTPAC account to fund expenses related to sending Guam’s 
delegation to the 13th Festival of the Pacific Arts and Culture June 6th-16th 2024 in Honolulu Hawaii. Frank Rabon 
seconds. In discussion Chair and Vice Chair caution the Acting Director Angie Taitague to have the quarterly 
reports on time, T’s crossed and I’s dotted and to consult with the Public Auditor as needed. Motion Carries and 
Resolution 2023-003 was adopted. 
 

2. Resolution 2023-004 (Account Signatory Update) 
Discussion was made on the resolution and document signatories. All agreed to take action via E-vote. 
 
 

 
VII. OLD BUSINESS 



3 
 

Poll was sent out via email to vote on BOD meeting days and time. Guam CAHA Board of Directors meetings have 
been moved to the second Tuesday of the month at 3pm. 

 
VIII. NEW BUSINESS 

1. FY 2025 Budget prep 
Acting Executive Directo Angie Taitague sent out proposed budget via email to the board and will schedule to 
meet with Senator Joe San Agustine to finalize budget proposal. Chairwoman Monica Guzman mentions that when 
you meet with Senator San Agustine make sure you emphasize and stress the need for additional staff.  
 

IX. ANNOUNCEMENTS 
- John Dierkings reception was a success 
- Need RFP’s to go out to Hotels ASAP 
- No Exhibit for January as staff will be painting the gallery 
- FEB exhibit is David Sablan 
- Jan Meeting needs to be moved from 2nd Tuesday as there is no time to get the ads out to abide by the law 
- Next Meeting Jan 16th 
- Action Item Review 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 
At 4:26pm the meeting was adjourned by Donna Kloppenburg and seconded by Al Labang. All in favor. 

                       
 
  
                                                                              Date: ______________ 
Secretary, Donna Kloppenburg 
Guam Council on the Arts and Humanities 

 

 

PREPARED BY: 

                                                                              Date: ______________ 
Mike Mafnas PCII 
Guam Council on the Arts and Humanities 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 



\ 
~ \ 

po. Box 2950 Hagatna, Gl' 96932 
'lei: (6 i l) .f72-8931 • Fax: (671) 477-4826 • Email: governor~rguam ,gov 

Felix P Camacho 
GfJ1!t'rnOr 

Michael W. Cruz, \\1), 

l.ieutt'fldnt GO-;}frl/Or 

The Honorable Judith T. Won Pat, Ed.D. 
Speaker 
Mina ' Trenta Na Liheslaturan GWlhan 
155 Hessler Street 
Hagatfia, Guam 96910 

Dear Speaker Won Pat: 

MAY 19 2010 

Transmitted herewith is Substitute Bill No, 305-30 (COR) "AN ACT TO ADD A NEW 
CHAPTER 85A TO TITLE 5, GUAM CODE ANNOTATED, RELATIVE TO 
CREATING THE GUAM MASTERS AWARD TO RECOGNIZE MASTER 
PRACTITIONERS OF GUAM'S TRADITIONAL AND FOLK ARTS", which I signed into 
law on May 17,2010 as Public Law 30-139. 

Sinseru yan Maglihet, 

MICHAEL W. CRUZ, M.D. 
I Maga 'llihen Guahan para pa 'go 
Acting Governor of Guahan 

Attachment: copy of Bill 

1'128 



I MINA'TRENTA NA LIHESLATURAN cuAHAN 
2010 (SECOND) Regular Session 

CERTIFICATION OF PASSAGE OF AN ACT TO I MAGA'LAHEN GuAHAN 

This is to certify that Substitute Bill No. 305-30 (COR), 1/ AN ACT TO ADD A 
NEW CHAPTER 85A TO TITLE 5, GUAM CODE ANNOTATED, RELATIVE 
TO CREATING THE GUAM MASTERS AWARD TO RECOGNIZE 
MASTER PRACTITIONERS OF GUAM'S TRADITIONAL AND FOLK 
ARTS", was on the 3rd day of May, 2010, duly and regularly passed. 

Judith T. Won Pat, Ed. D. 
Speaker 

Tina 0 una Barnes 
Legislative Secretary 

This Act was received by I Maga'lahen Gudhan this _5'_~ __ day of (Y\LUj , 2010, at 

,-{,OD o'c!ock ---J2-.M. ~ 

MIKE W. CRUZ. ttl I 
GO't'EIMIR rE GUMI AtcTIIG 

MAY 17 2010 Date: ___________ _ 

Public Law No. P.L. 30-139 

Assistant Staff Officer 
Maga'lahi's Office 



IMINA'TRENTA NA LIHESLATURAN GUAHAN 
2009 (FIRST) Regular Session 

Bill No. 305-30 (COR) 
As substituted by the Committee on Tourism, 
Cultural Affairs, Youth, and Public Broadcasting, 
and amended on the FlOOf. 

Introduced by: B. J.F. Cruz 
T. R. Muiia Barnes 
Telo Taitague 
T. C. Ada 
V. Anthony Ada 
F. B. Aguon, Jr. 
F. F. BIas, Jr. 
E. J.B. Calvo 
J. V. Espaldon 
Judith P. Guthertz, DPA 
Adolpho B. Palacios, Sr. 
v. c. pangelinan 
R. J. Respicio 
Ray Tenorio 
Judith T. Won Pat, Ed.D. 

AN ACT TO ADD A NEW CHAPTER 85A TO TITLE 5, 
GUAM CODE ANNOTATED, RELATIVE TO 
CREATING THE GUAM MASTERS AWARD TO 
RECOGNIZE MASTER PRACTITIONERS OF GUAM'S 
TRADITIONAL AND FOLK ARTS. 

1 BE IT ENACTED BY THE PEOPLE OF GUAM: 

2 Section 1. Legislative Findings and Intent. I Liheslaturan Guiihan finds 

3 that the history of Guam and the evolution of its culture have shaped and 

4 influenced the artistic traditions of the indigenous people. The practice and 

1 



1 perpetuation of traditional visual arts, crafts, mUSIC, dance, and storytelling 

2 contribute to the preservation of culture and therefore, to the preservation of the 

3 life and values of the community. 

4 There exists among the practitioners of Guam's folk and traditional arts 

5 those who are considered masters of the art. It is the intent of I Liheslatura that 

6 such practitioners be given due recognition for their artistry and craftsmanship, and 

7 their efforts to preserve Guam's rich history and cultural traditions through the 

8 practice and perpetuation of their art. 

9 It is additionally the intent of I Liheslatura to establish in law a set of 

10 guidelines and criteria by which to select and judge the worthiness of a candidate 

11 for the Guam Masters Award. 

12 Section 2. Creation of the Guam Masters Award. A new Chapter 85A 

13 is added to Title 5, Guam Code Annotated, to read: 

14 "Chapter 85A 

15 Guam Masters Award 

16 §85A 101. Short Title. This Act shall be known and cited as the 

1 7 "Guam Masters A ward Act." 

18 §85A 102. Creation. There is created within the Guam Council on 

19 the Arts and Humanities Agency (eARA) the Guam Masters Award, to be 

20 given to accomplished practitioners of Guam's folk and traditional arts who 

21 have contributed to the preservation, advancement, and appreciation of their 

22 art. 

23 §85A 1 03. Award Frequency and Limitations. CAHA shall 

24 accept nominations for the Guam Masters Award during the month of April 

25 2010 and every four (4) years thereafter. No more than four (4) awards may 

26 be given during each award year. Nominations for the Guam Masters 

2 



1 A ward may be accepted from any party other than CAHA, members of its 

2 staff, management, and Board, or from a prospective award candidate. 

3 §85A 104. Selection Criteria. Nominees for the Guam Masters 

4 Award shall be judged based on the following criteria: 

5 (a) Exemplary and active practice of a traditional art form. 

6 (b) Expertise, consummate skill, and longevity in the promotion 

7 and perpetuation of a traditional art form. 

8 (c) Contributions to the traditional art form in areas of 

9 appreciation, knowledge, teaching, advocacy, and 

10 advancement. 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

(d) Evidence of high artistic quality of work and mastery of 

traditional art form via support materials. 

( e) Continuing artistic accomplishment. 

(f) Participation in one's art form via practicing or teaching. 

(g) Artistic excellence. 

(h) Benefit to artistic tradition through contributions such as 

teaching, advocacy, organizing, and preserving important 

repertoires. 

(i) Contribution to living cultural heritage. 

U) Active engagement in preserving the folk and traditional arts. 

(k) Increase in opportunities for and public visibility of traditional 

arts and artists through the nominee's efforts. 

§85A 105. Selection Procedures. 

(a) CAHA staff shall review nomination packets to ensure criteria 

and guidelines have been met. 

3 



• 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

(b) A panel of experts, to be determined by CAHA based on the 

nominees' disciplines, shall convene to verify authenticity and 

merit, and to narrow the pool of nominees. 

(c) A panel of judges, to be determined by CAHA, shall convene to 

determine final recipients of the Guam Masters Award based on 

the Selection Criteria listed herein." 

4 











































































































FESTPAC REPORT TO BOARD 
January 23, 2024 
 
Budget: Attached 
 
Travel:  The delegation will fly to Hawaii in 2 groups: 

Group 1: 55pax departing on June 3rd and returning on the 17th and 18th.  
Group 2: 45pax departing June 4th and returning on 18th 

 

Accommodations: Delegates housed at UH Manoa dorms 
 Staff/HOD still awaiting information on hotel accommodations 
 
Orientation: February 17, 9am at Sinajana Community Arts Center 
 
Presentation: Guam Micronesia Island Fair, May 17-19 Ipao Park 
 
Outreach: Need to develop in partnership with GVB and PBS to include social media  
 
Delegation: Vacancies: 5, Chairs will nominate replacement 
 
Costs: Received budgets from Performing Arts and Chant. Still awaiting budgets from Literary, Theater, 
Fashion, Carving/Body Ornamentation, Blacksmithing, Culinary, Visual/Film, Seafaring, Weaving/Floral 
Arts, Yo’Amte and traditional games. Anticipated total budget for programming is $70,000. 
 
Procurement: Met with GVB and they will assist in handling procurement, they will issue RFQ, provide 
all docs, CAHA will make payment.  
 
Anticipated RFQ’s: 
 
  Guam Hut design/execution 
  Uniforms: Fabric design/production and official T-shirts 
  Delegation gifts 
 
Committee meets monthly but will increase frequency in 2024. 
 



	13th	Festival	of	Pacific	Arts	2024
Proposed	Budget	Expenses	

Based on travel dates beginning June 03-18, 2020
In-kind/Donation

1 $196,200.00
(100 Delegates, FestPac Chair, CAHA Acting 
Director, 4 CAHA Staff and 3 Media

2 Insurance: 109 pax x $10.00 $1,090.00

3 Staff/Lodging/ Meals 
$200/day x 16 days x 6 pax (FestPac Chair, 
CAHA Acting Director and 4 CAHA Staff) $19,200.00

4 $2,500.00

5 Uniforms
Fabric Design & Purchase $5,000.00
Official T-Shirts $2,000.00

6 $10,000.00

7 Programming $69,100.00 $1,200.00

9 Delegation Gifts $2,500.00

10 Host Country Requirements i.e. flags $1,000.00
11 Shipping Costs - 20' Container $15,000.00
12 Technical Production - Videography/Photography $10,000.00
13 Marketing & Promotions $10,000.00
14 Miscellaneous/ Contingency Emergency Fund $5,000.00

$313,590.00 $36,200.00

Anticipated Funding Sources:
Public Law 35 - 60: Authorizes the use of 
Percent for the Arts monies for the 13th 
Festival of Pacific Arts $350,000.00
National Endowment for the Arts $43,000.00
PBS $25,000.00
Fundraising/Sponsorship $13,934.35

$406,934.35

TOTAL:

Travel - Airfare: 109 pax @ $1,800/per pax

Transportation:  2 Vans x $75 x 16 days Inc 
insurance

Guam Hut -Design/ Decoration/ Execution 



COL 03072011

5 GCAGOVERNMENT OPERATIONS
CH. 85AGUAM MASTERS AWARD

1

CHAPTER 85A
GUAM MASTERS AWARD

SOURCE: Entire chapter added by P.L. 30-139:2 (May 17, 2010).

§ 85A101. Short Title.
§ 85A102. Creation.
§ 85A103. Award Frequency and Limitations.
§ 85A104. Selection Criteria.
§ 85A105. Selection Procedures.

§ 85A101. Short Title.
This Act shall be known and cited as the “Guam Masters 

Award Act.”

§ 85A102. Creation.
There is created within the Guam Council on the Arts and 

Humanities Agency (CAHA) the Guam Masters Award, to be 
given to accomplished practitioners of Guam’s folk and traditional 
arts who have contributed to the preservation, advancement, and 
appreciation of their art. 

§ 85A103. Award Frequency and Limitations.
CAHA shall accept nominations for the Guam Masters Award 

during the month of April 2010 and every four (4) years thereafter.  
No more than four (4) awards may be given during each award 
year.  Nominations for the Guam Masters Award may be accepted 
from any party other than CAHA, members of its staff, 
management, and Board, or from a prospective award candidate. 

§ 85A104. Selection Criteria.
Nominees for the Guam Masters Award shall be judged based 

on the following criteria:

(a) Exemplary and active practice of a traditional art form.
(b) Expertise, consummate skill, and longevity in the 

promotion and perpetuation of a traditional art form.

http://www.guamcourts.org/CompilerofLaws/GCA/05gca/5gc085A.pdf



COL 03072011

5 GCAGOVERNMENT OPERATIONS
CH. 85AGUAM MASTERS AWARD

2

(c) Contributions to the traditional art form in areas of 
appreciation, knowledge, teaching, advocacy, and 
advancement.

(d) Evidence of high artistic quality of work and mastery 
of traditional art form via support materials.

(e) Continuing artistic accomplishment.

(f) Participation in one’s art form via practicing or 
teaching.

(g) Artistic excellence.
(h) Benefit to artistic tradition through contributions such 

as teaching, advocacy, organizing, and preserving important 
repertoires.

(i) Contribution to living cultural heritage.
(j) Active engagement in preserving the folk and 

traditional arts.
(k) Increase in opportunities for and public visibility of 

traditional arts and artists through the nominee’s efforts.

§ 85A105. Selection Procedures. 
(a) CAHA staff shall review nomination packets to ensure 

criteria and guidelines have been met. 

(b) A panel of experts, to be determined by CAHA based on 
the nominees’ disciplines, shall convene to verify authenticity and 
merit, and to narrow the pool of nominees. 

(c) A panel of judges, to be determined by CAHA, shall 
convene to determine final recipients of the Guam Masters Award 
based on the Selection Criteria listed herein.

----------



Page 1 of 5 

GUAM COUNCIL ON THE ARTS AND HUMANITIES 
Kahan I Kutturan Guåhan 
A Division of the Department of Chamorro Affairs 
P.O. Box 2950, Hagåtña, GU 96932 ● Terlaje Professional Bldg., 1st Floor, Hernan Cortez Ave., Hagåtña 
Telephone: (671) 300-1204 to 300-1208 Fax: (671) 300-1209 
Email: kaha1@guam.net 

Guam Masters Award – “Guam National Treasure” for Traditional and Folk Arts 
Nomination Packet 

I. GUAM MASTERS AWARD – “GUAM NATIONAL TREASURE”

The Guam Masters Award – “Guam National Treasure” created through Public Law 30-139 was established to recognize master 
practitioners of Guam’s Traditional and Folk Arts.  The award gives due recognition to these master practitioners for their artistry 
and craftsmanship, and their continuing efforts to preserve Guam’s rich history and cultural traditions through the practice and 
perpetuation of their arts. The award acknowledges artists whose contributions, primarily through teaching, advocacy, organizing 
and preserving important repertoires, have greatly benefited their artistic tradition; and whose efforts have significantly increased 
opportunities for and public visibility of traditional and folk arts.  

FOLK AND TRADITIONAL ARTS 

 The terms “traditional” and folk may be used interchangeably to refer to those aspects of learned behavior (culture) that are 
transferred through word of mouth and/ or by following an example set within a cultural group. Traditional art is learned from family 
or community members and is passed along through generations, with each artist remaining true to time-honored methods or 
techniques, yet free to add personal creativity to the process. Folk or traditional artists are highly trained, and it is the manner of 
their training that earns them the designation of “folk”.  

The following information is provided by Georgine Clarke and Joey Brackner of the Alabama State Council on the Arts 
(www.arts.alabama.gov). 

Folk arts are defined as artistic expressions that have grown through time within a group or community that shares a common 
location, occupation, religion, language, or culture. These "grass roots" arts can be found in every culture and are passed on from 
one generation to the next, usually through oral tradition, often by observing a master.  Traditional arts are a broad term for the 
artistic activities that are passed down from one generation to the next. These can include traditional music, dance, crafts, and 
local architectural styles. Traditional arts include folk arts, a term that more specifically refer to grass roots community traditions. 

Folk Arts ARE: 
1. Living traditional practice passed down over time and through space. Since most folklore is passed down through

generations, it is closely connected to community history.
2. Shared by a group of people who have something in common: language, ethnicity, family, region, occupation, religion,

nationality, age, gender, social class, social clubs, school, etc. Everyone belongs to various groups; therefore, everyone
has folklore of some sort.

3. Learned informally by word of mouth, observation, and/or imitation.
4. Made up of conservative elements (motifs) that stay the same through many transmissions, but folklore also changes in

transmission (variants). In other words, folk traditions have longevity, but are dynamic and adaptable.
5. Usually anonymous in origin.

  Folk Arts are NOT: 
1. Learned primarily through workshops, classes, books, or magazines.
2. Necessarily old or an antique.
3. Written history, nor historical re-enactment (re-creating the past with actors).



Page 2 of 5 

II. ELIGIBILITY

Nominees must be permanent residents of Guam and be individuals worthy of recognition and have a record of continuing artistic 
accomplishment. They must be actively participating in their art form, either as an apprentice, practitioners or as teachers and must 
be actively engaged in perpetuating the folk and traditional arts for more than 20 consecutive years.  This award recognizes an artist 
whose contributions, primarily through teaching, advocacy, organizing, and maintaining important repertoires, have greatly 
benefited their artistic tradition and whose efforts have significantly increased opportunities for and public visibility of traditional arts 
and artists. 

III. MAKE A NOMINATION

To honor and preserve Guam’s indigenous cultural heritage, the Guam Council on the Arts and Humanities (CAHA) awards the 
Guam Masters Award – “Guam National Treasure” once every four (4) years to master folk and traditional artists. These awards 
recognize lifetime achievement, artistic excellence, and contributions to Guam’s traditional arts heritage. 

Should a discipline be recognized as representing an indigenous way of life perpetuating a traditional practice, but does not have a 
recognized master, then the nominees must be worthy of recognition and have a record of 20+ years of continuing artistic 
accomplishment. They must be actively participating in their art form, either as practitioners or as teachers.  Guam Masters of 
Traditional and Folk Arts are selected according to the criteria of artistic excellence, significance within the particular artistic 
tradition and contributions to a living cultural heritage.  

IV. HOW TO SUBMIT A NOMINATION

A. A recognized Master of the discipline for which the individual is being nominated for should be the primary nominator.

B. Masters may submit one or more nomination(s) in each round of the Guam Masters Award – “Guam National Treasure”
for Traditional and Folk Arts.

C. No one may nominate him/herself.

D. Each nomination should have a separate nomination package.

E. Nominations packets must include the following:

1. Nomination Statement/Letter

A statement/ letter that details the reasons that the nominee(s) should receive a Guam Masters Award – “Guam National 
Treasure”.  Describe the nominee’s contributions to his or her particular artistic tradition and explain why this individual or 
group deserves recognition. 

2. Work Samples Index  Work Samples

For each work sample that you submitting for your nomination, provide the information below as relevant to your 
nomination: 

• A letter designation.  Start with “A.”  List your samples in the order in which you want them reviewed.  (e.g., A, B,
C).  Make sure that the letter on the Work Sample Index corresponds to the letter on the sample work itself.
Each different CD, DVD-R, DVD-ROM, etc., should be considered one work sample.  For digital images on a



 

Page 3 of 5 
 

CD, each set (not each image) should be considered one sample; follow your Wok Sample Index with a script 
that identifies each image separately. 

 
• Format, e.g., CD (audio), CD (data), DVD-R, DVD-ROM, printed material. Static images (e.g., pictures) are 

acceptable. 
 
• Identification of the artist or artist’s work featured (e.g., Chamorro gentleman wearing brown såde’ standing in 

front of a traditional Chamorro hut). 
 
• Title or Description of the work or activity. 
 
• Any special instructions for reviewing the sample, and, where relevant, specific selections on that sample.  

Include, as relevant: 
 

o The relevant track or chapter numbers, in priority order. 
 
o Real elapse time or cue information indicating the start of different selections, in priority order. Note 

your first cue as 0:00.  If your second selection starts five minutes later, note the start of that as 5:00, 
etc. 

 
o Samples should be cued to the segment to be reviewed.   
 
o Any other information necessary to guide reviewers easily to the selections that you want. 

 
Nominations must include work samples such as photographs, press clippings, performance programs or flyers, 
phonograph records, tape recordings, CDs, DVDs, digital recordings, web links, other forms of documentation, or actual 
samples of the individual's work in support of the nomination are encouraged. Please limit support materials to no 
more than 20 items. The nomination package will not be considered complete without these items. All materials must be 
labeled with the name of the nominee and the nominator’s name.   Work samples are a critical part of the nomination 
package and are considered carefully during review. Work samples should include recent, concise, and high-quality 
examples of the nominee’s work.   

.  
3. Recommendation / Support Letters 

 
Five (5) letters of personnel recommendation or letters of support that demonstrate expert and/ or community support of 
the nomination.    

 
4. Additional Information 

 
If the information is not included on nomination statement or letter, please attach: 

 
a.  a resume or short biography that outlines a career of the nominee(s) and includes the following information: 

1. Number of years the nominee has been apprenticing, practicing, teaching and advocating their 
art form. 

2. Nominee’s Mailing Address 
3. Nominee’s Home Address 
4. Nominee’s Contact Numbers: Work, home and cell phone number 
5. Nominee’s email address 

 
b.  a list of major public appearances or exhibitions by the nominee(s); 
 
c.  and the titles of published works, if any.   

 
F. Submitting Work Samples  



 

Page 4 of 5 
 

 
The nomination package will not be considered complete without these items. All materials must be labeled with the name of 
the nominee and the nominator’s name.   Work samples are a critical part of the nomination package and are considered 
carefully during review. Work samples should include recent, concise, and high quality examples of the nominee’s work.  

 
a. Audio Samples  

 
Submit no more than five (5) selections, one copy each OR a single CD containing all 5 audio selections. Each 
selection should not exceed five minutes. 

 
b. Digital images  

 
Submit no more than 20 digital images, one copy each OR a single DVD or CD containing all 20 digital images. 
Image size should be consistent; 800 x 600 pixels are suggested. Each image/file has a size limit of 5 MB. 
Acceptable file types are jpeg, gif, and tiff.   

 
c. Video Samples 

  
Submit no more than three (3) selections, one copy each OR a single DVD containing all 3 video samples. Each 
selection should not exceed five minutes.  

 
d. Publications and catalogues  

 
Submit no more than three (3) publications, one copy each OR a single CD containing all 3 selections. 

 
G. Use only paper clips and rubber bands to fasten your material. Do not bind or staple material. 
 
H. Support material will not be returned. Please do not send the only copy.  
 
I. A complete package should not exceed 20 pages in length.  Excess pages will be removed and not reviewed.   
 
J. Posthumous nominations will not be considered. 

 
V. DEADLINE FOR NOMINATIONS and WHERE TO SUBMIT NOMINATIONS 

 
A. Deadline to submit nomination packets with supporting materials to the Guam Council on the Arts and Humanities is 4:00 

p.m., Day, Date. 
 
B. Nomination packets must be submitted directly to the Offices of the Guam Council on the Arts and Humanities located at 

Terlaje Professional Building, 1st Floor, 194 Hernan Cortez Avenue in Hagåtña.  No fax, mail or email submissions will 
be accepted. 

 
VI. REVIEW OF NOMINATIONS 

 
Nominations submitted to the Guam Council on the Arts and Humanities by the deadline are reviewed by an advisory panel of folk 
and traditional arts experts to verify authenticity and merit and to narrow the pool of nominees.  Advisory Panel recommendations 
are forwarded to a panel of judges to determine the final recipients of the Guam Masters Award – “Guam National Treasure” based 
on the following selection criteria: 

 
(a) Exemplary and active practice of a traditional art form.  
 
(b) Apprenticeship, consummate skill and longevity in the promotion and perpetuation of a traditional art form. 
 
(c) Contributions to the traditional art form in areas of appreciation, knowledge, teaching, advocacy and advancement. 



 

Page 5 of 5 
 

 
(d) Evidence of high artistic quality of work and mastery of traditional art form via support materials. 
 
(e) Continuing artistic accomplishment. 
 
(f) Participation in one’s form via practicing or teaching.  
 
(g) Artistic excellence. 
 
(h) Benefit to artistic tradition through contributions such as teaching, advocacy, organizing and preserving important 

repertoires. 
 
(i) Contributions to living cultural heritage. 
 
(j) Active engagement in preserving the folk and traditional arts. 
 
(k) Increase in opportunities for public visibility of traditional arts and artists through the nominee’s efforts.  

 
After the panel review, recommendations are submitted to a panel of judges MADE UP OF THE LEAD PERSON FROM EACH PANEL, 
and a RECOGNIZED MASTER of the discipline for which the award is being considered, to determine the final 4 awardees.  The 
recommended 4 awardees are presented to the Board of Directors for approval.  THE ROLE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS IS TO 
CERTIFY THAT THE PROCESS HAS BEEN FOLLOWED AND MEETS THE CRITERIA DESCRIBED.  THE ROLE OF STAFF IS TO 
RECEIVE THE NOMINATIONS AND TO SCREEN THEM FOR ELIGIBILITY ACCORDING TO THE CHECKLIST.  IF ITEMS ARE 
MISSING, THE PACKET WILL NOT BE FORWARDED TO THE PANEL. 
 

VII. CHECKLIST 
 

Did you include the following?  
 
(**Please refer to pages 1 and 2, Section III, Subsection D for detailed information.) 
 
 

1. Nomination Statement/Letter  
 

2. Work Sample Index  
• A letter designation. 
• Format, e.g., CD (audio), CD (data), DVD-R, DVD-ROM, printed material. Static images (e.g., pictures) are 

acceptable. 
• Identification of the artist or artist’s work featured 
• Title or Description of the work or activity. 
• Any special instructions for reviewing the sample, and, where relevant, specific selections on that sample.  Include, 

as relevant: 
 

3. Recommendation / Support Letters (Maximum of five) 
 

4. Additional Information 
 

• A resume or short biography that outlines a career of the nominee(s); and includes the number of years the nominee 
has been apprenticing, teaching and advocating their art form, nominee’s mailing address, home address, email 
address and contact numbers; work, home and cell phone.  

• A list of major public appearances or exhibitions by the nominee(s); and 
• The titles of published works, if any.            
 

(10.31.16 BB) 



COL 03072011

5 GCAGOVERNMENT OPERATIONS
CH. 85AGUAM MASTERS AWARD

1

CHAPTER 85A
GUAM MASTERS AWARD

SOURCE: Entire chapter added by P.L. 30-139:2 (May 17, 2010).

§ 85A101. Short Title.
§ 85A102. Creation.
§ 85A103. Award Frequency and Limitations.
§ 85A104. Selection Criteria.
§ 85A105. Selection Procedures.

§ 85A101. Short Title.
This Act shall be known and cited as the “Guam Masters 

Award Act.”

§ 85A102. Creation.
There is created within the Guam Council on the Arts and 

Humanities Agency (CAHA) the Guam Masters Award, to be 
given to accomplished practitioners of Guam’s folk and traditional 
arts who have contributed to the preservation, advancement, and 
appreciation of their art. 

§ 85A103. Award Frequency and Limitations.
CAHA shall accept nominations for the Guam Masters Award 

during the month of April 2010 and every four (4) years thereafter.  
No more than four (4) awards may be given during each award 
year.  Nominations for the Guam Masters Award may be accepted 
from any party other than CAHA, members of its staff, 
management, and Board, or from a prospective award candidate. 

§ 85A104. Selection Criteria.
Nominees for the Guam Masters Award shall be judged based 

on the following criteria:

(a) Nomination submitted by a recognized Master of the 
discipline for which the nominee is being nominated.

(b) Apprenticeship, consummate skill, and longevity in 
the promotion and perpetuation of a traditional art 

form.

http://www.guamcourts.org/CompilerofLaws/GCA/05gca/5gc085A.pdf



COL 03072011

5 GCAGOVERNMENT OPERATIONS
CH. 85AGUAM MASTERS AWARD

2

(c) Contributions to the traditional art form in areas of 
appreciation, knowledge, teaching, advocacy, and 
advancement.

(d) Evidence of apprenticeship years, high artistic quality of 
work, mastery of traditional art form via support materials .

(e) Continuing artistic accomplishment.

(f) Participation in one’s art form by apprenticing, 
teaching, and mastery of traditional art form.

(g) Artistic excellence.
(h) Benefit to artistic tradition through contributions such

as teaching, advocacy, organizing, and preserving important 
repertoires.

(i) Contribution to living cultural heritage.
(j) Active engagement in preserving the folk and

traditional arts.
(k) Increase in opportunities for and public visibility of 

traditional arts and artists through the nominee’s efforts.
§ 85A105. Selection Procedures.

(a) CAHA staff shall review nomination packets to ensure
criteria and guidelines have been met. 

(b) A panel of experts, to be determined by CAHA based on 
the nominees’ disciplines, shall convene to verify authenticity and 
merit, and to narrow the pool of nominees. 

(c) A panel of judges, inclusive of a recognized Master, 
to be determined by CAHA, shall convene to determine final 
recipients of the Guam Masters Award based on the Selection 
Criteria listed herein.

----------


	Agenda -January 2024 Board Mtg.pdf
	Agenda -January 2024 Board Mtg
	DEC 2023 Board minutes 
	I. CALL TO ORDER
	The Guam Council on the Arts and Humanities Agency’s regular board meeting was called to order at 3:00 pm by Chairwoman of the Board, Monica Guzman.
	II. ATTENDANCE:
	 Board Members:  Monica Guzman (Chair), Max Ronquillo (Vice), Donna Kloppenburg, Mayor Jessy Gogue, Frank Rabon, Al Labang, Rolly Zepeda
	 Staff:  Acting Executive Director (ED) Angie R. Taitague, Jackie Balbas Ordilia (Lilly) Cruz, Mike Mafnas
	 Absent: Board Members:  Simone Bollinger
	III. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	Swearing in of Board members and Officers
	IV. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT:
	 Revolving Fund Report / Audit
	a. Guam Revolving Checking Account Balance as of December 26, 2023, is fifty-one thousand eight hundred and eighty-two dollars and fifty-one cents. $51,882.51
	b. Festpac Checking Account Balance as of December 26,2023 is Two thousand Two hundred twenty-six              dollars and sixty cents. $2,226.60.
	c. Percent for the Arts Checking Account Balance as of December 26, 2023, is five hundred ninety-one
	thousand two hundred fifty-two dollars and seventy-five cents. $591,252.75.
	d. Percent for the Arts Saving Account Balance as of December 26, 2023 is One million one hundred and   twenty-six three thousand three hundred seventeen dollars and fifty-nine cents. $1,126,317.59
	 Audit Request:  Status Quo.
	 Percent For the Arts Rules & Regulation:  Started reviewing and compiling all changes pertaining to the Percent law
	 Traditional Master’s Program: Chair woman Monica Guzman asked for Frank Rabon’s comments on this topic as he was the board member that led the efforts for the Traditional Master’s Program. Frank Rabon cautions the staff in their effort to move forwa...
	 Art Bank: Mike Mafnas will begin to make rounds to government agencies mid-January to inventory for Art Bank
	 CAHA Website: Status Quo
	 Travel Report:  See Attached
	V. FESTPAC
	Chair woman Monica Guzman gives an action item report
	- Delegation Orientation moved to Feb 27th
	- Delegation forms deadline extended to December 28th
	- Waiting on budget from the Literary Arts program
	- Need an RFP for design and production of uniforms
	- Meeting set for January 9th with Roman dela Cruz to discuss his proposal for t-shirts that he has agreed to fund
	- PBS wants to start scheduling interviews
	- Currently working with Donna Kloppenburg on the Festpac presentation in April or May
	- United still a sponsor
	- Finalizing Matson’s in-kind sponsorship
	- Need an RFP for design of the village hut for the convention center
	- Need a board action to transfer funds from percent for the arts account to the Festpac account
	VI. Board Action
	1. Resolution 2023-003 (Transfer of FESTPAC Funds)
	Vice Chair Max Ronquillo moved to adopt Resolution 21023-003 relative to transferring $350,000 from the CAHA percent for the arts checking account to the CAHA FESTPAC account to fund expenses related to sending Guam’s delegation to the 13th Festival o...
	2. Resolution 2023-004 (Account Signatory Update)
	Discussion was made on the resolution and document signatories. All agreed to take action via E-vote.
	VII. OLD BUSINESS
	Poll was sent out via email to vote on BOD meeting days and time. Guam CAHA Board of Directors meetings have been moved to the second Tuesday of the month at 3pm.
	VIII. NEW BUSINESS
	1. FY 2025 Budget prep
	Acting Executive Directo Angie Taitague sent out proposed budget via email to the board and will schedule to meet with Senator Joe San Agustine to finalize budget proposal. Chairwoman Monica Guzman mentions that when you meet with Senator San Agustine...
	IX. ANNOUNCEMENTS
	- John Dierkings reception was a success
	- Need RFP’s to go out to Hotels ASAP
	- No Exhibit for January as staff will be painting the gallery
	- FEB exhibit is David Sablan
	- Jan Meeting needs to be moved from 2nd Tuesday as there is no time to get the ads out to abide by the law
	- Next Meeting Jan 16th
	- Action Item Review
	ADJOURNMENT
	At 4:26pm the meeting was adjourned by Donna Kloppenburg and seconded by Al Labang. All in favor.

	P.L. 30-139 SBill No. 305-30 (COR)
	P.L. 30-139 SBill No. 305-30 (COR) .pdf
	SBill No. 305-30 (COR) CREPORT.pdf
	Bill No. 305-30  - VS.pdf
	Bill No. 305-30(COR)bINTRO.pdf


	FPReporttoBoard01232024 
	01232024FestPac Report to Board..pdf
	01152024_13th FestPac 2024 Proposed Budget 01.13.2024 jgb.xls  -  Compatibility Mode.pdf

	Original Chapter 85A-Masters Award
	CAHA-Amended Nomination Packet-2016
	Amended Chapter 85A-Masters Award

